

VRS Employer Manual

VLDP Benefits

Section 1 – Administration

Eligible political subdivision and school division employees in the Hybrid Retirement
Plan who become disabled and cannot work have protection through the Virginia Local
Disability Program (VLDP). The program includes short-term and long-term disability
benefits and a long-term care program. VLDP encourages rehabilitation with the goal of
returning employees to gainful employment when they are medically able.

Political subdivisions and school divisions are covered automatically under VLDP unless they previously opted out and provided a comparable plan for employees. A comparable plan includes short-term and long-term disability only. Long-term care can be offered with the comparable plan but is not required.

Authority and Interpretation

The Virginia Retirement System (VRS) administers VLDP in conjunction with Alight, a third-party administrator. Information contained in this chapter is governed by Title 51.1 of the *Code of Virginia*. This information is intended to be general; it cannot be complete in all details and cannot supersede or restrict the authority granted by the *Code of Virginia*, which may be amended from time to time. The VRS Board of Trustees has the authority to develop, implement and administer VLDP and develop policies governing the program.

Disability Trust Fund

Local employers pay the costs of providing short-term disability benefits. VRS determines the amount of contributions needed to provide the funds required to maintain long-term disability coverage and long-term care insurance and to administer the program, including case management and cost containment programs.

Contributions are deposited in an independent trust – the Hybrid Retirement Program Disability Insurance Trust Fund. The long-term disability contributions are held in the disability trust and are invested and administered solely in the interests of the participating employees and beneficiaries.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

Taxes

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Roles

A number of key participants ensure the program functions properly. Employees, VRS, Alight, illumifin Corporation, employers and workers' compensation all play an important role in the claims process.

The employer must keep records for employees covered under VLDP and must furnish information required by the VRS Board of Trustees or its designee. In addition, the employer communicates with employees and works with third-party administrators to ensure employees' needs are met.

The employee is responsible for reporting any illness or injury and following the proper procedures. In addition, an employee's family member or employer representative may also initiate a VLDP claim on behalf of the employee.

VRS is responsible for the administration of the program. Alight is the third-party administrator that provides claims administration for VLDP, reviews medical information, assists the employee and employer in consultation with the employee's physician with transition back to work and conducts claims investigations.

illumifin manages long-term care claims. Workers' compensation, along with VLDP, provides income replacement for workers who have experienced a work-related injury or illness. As each topic in this chapter is discussed, the responsibilities of each participant will be outlined in detail.

Contact Information

Individuals can communicate with VRS in a variety of ways. Separate addresses are provided for email, depending on whether the individual writing is an employer, an employee or a retiree.

VRS

www.varetire.org

1200 East Main Street; PO Box 2500; Richmond, VA 23218-2500 Phone: 888-827-3847; Fax: 804-786-1541; TDD: 804-289-5919

Employer: employer-info@varetire.org
Member: member-info@varetire.org
Retiree: retiree-info@varetire.org

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

<u>Taxes</u>

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Alight

www.vldpclaimservices.com

Claim Correspondence: Dept. 00057; PO Box 299094; Lewisville, TX 75029-9094 Payroll Correspondence: Dept. 00052; PO Box 299096; Lewisville, TX 75029-9096

Phone: 877-928-7021; Fax: 720-456-4784

Workers' Compensation

Workers' compensation providers vary by employer.

illumifin

www.illumifin.com

935 S. Main St., Greenville. SC 29601

Phone: 877-431-5824

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

An employee may not receive more than one disability benefit under VLDP for concurrent illnesses or injuries. The following chart contains a summary of benefits. Each benefit is covered in more detail in the corresponding sections of this chapter.

Benefit:	Coverage:	Eligibility Begins:
Short-term Disability	Provides short-term disability benefits if an employee becomes disabled and cannot work, beginning after a seven-calendar-day elimination period	First day of employment for work-related disabilities; after one year of continuous service with the same employer for nonwork-related disabilities
Long-Term Disability	Provides long-term disability benefits if an employee becomes disabled and cannot work after the expiration of the maximum period of short-term disability	First day of employment for work-related disabilities; after one year of continuous service with the same employer for nonwork-related disabilities
Long-Term Care Plan	Pays a daily reimbursement for medical, personal and social services provided in a nursing care facility, assisted living, home health or respite care	First day of employment

Eligibility

A school division or political subdivision employee who was hired on or after January 1, 2014, and who participates in the Hybrid plan is an eligible employee for VLDP, provided the employer does not offer a comparable disability plan. A school division or political subdivision employee who opts into the Hybrid plan during the established election period is also eligible for VLDP, effective July 1, 2014. State employees in the

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

Taxes

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

• Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Hybrid plan are eligible for the Virginia Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP). For information about VSDP, refer to the VSDP chapter of the Employer Manual.

The maximum duration of short-term and long-term disability depends on when the employee first became approved for benefits. The following chart shows the maximum length of benefits for an employee who remains medically eligible.

Age:	Maximum Length of the VLDP Benefit
Less than 60	Normal service retirement age
60-64	Five years from the date the disability benefit began
65-68	Until age 70
69 or older	One year from the date the disability benefit began

After reaching maximum eligibility for a VLDP benefit, an employee must meet age and service requirements in order to retire and continue to receive a monthly benefit.

Dual Employment

A member who is employed in more than one position that provides coverage under the program must elect, by written notice to VRS, one position under which the retirement coverage and all other benefits will be based.

Taxes

The benefits paid under a non-work-related short-term or long-term disability are fully taxable. The benefits paid under a work-related disability are not taxable because the benefits are deemed to be in the form of a workers' compensation benefit. While the employee receives disability benefits, other eligible leave used to supplement income replacement is fully taxable.

VLDP may require copies of year-end tax statements and/or state and federal tax filings annually to certify income from gainful employment as part of the administration of statutory offsets under the program.

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

The benefits payable under VLDP are exempt from levy, garnishment, attachment and other legal processes.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

Dual Employment

Taxes

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Social Security Disability Insurance

In addition to VLDP benefits, an employee may also be eligible for Social Security Disability Insurance benefits (SSDI). If Alight deems the employee eligible for SSDI benefits, the employee is required to apply. Employees over the age of 30 are eligible for SSDI benefits if they:

- Have a terminal condition; or
- Are unable to perform any kind of work for which they are reasonably qualified for at least a year before applying for SSDI benefits.

The employee must have been employed in five of the previous 10 years before being considered for SSDI benefits.



For the special rules for individuals younger than age 30, contact the Social Security Administration (SSA).

Filing a SSDI Claim

Alight provides Social Security filing assistance through Allsup at no cost to the employee. If the employee is long-term disability and chooses to use Allsup, then Alight will help the employee contact Allsup. If the employee chooses representation by a party other than Allsup, the VLDP benefit will be reduced during the Social Security application process by an estimated Social Security benefit amount. The employee may avoid this reduction by using Allsup's services when filing with Social Security. Expenses incurred by private representation are the responsibility of the employee and will not be reimbursed.

Qualification for SSDI benefits does not automatically qualify the employee for VLDP disability benefits. If the employee files a claim for VLDP benefits and Alight determines the employee may also be eligible for SSDI benefits, the employee must apply with the SSA. If the employee uses Allsup, they will assist with the application and any necessary appeals at no cost to the employee. However, if the employee files a Social Security claim independently, Allsup or Alight will not assist with any Social Security appeals.

An employee who chooses not to use Allsup should have the following information ready when filing a Social Security claim:

- Social Security number;
- A certified copy of the employee's birth certificate;

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

<u>Taxes</u>

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

- W-2 forms for the past two years;
- Names, addresses and phone numbers of the licensed treating healthcare professionals, as well as any clinics or hospitals where the employee has been treated.

SSDI Benefits Award

It typically takes three to five months for the SSA to process an application and notify the employee of the authorization of SSDI benefits.

An employee who is approved for VLDP disability benefits will receive VLDP benefits while waiting for notification from Social Security, provided the employee used Allsup. When the employee begins to receive the SSDI benefits, the VLDP benefit will be offset by the Social Security amount.



If the SSDI benefits award is retroactive over a period the employee received VLDP benefits, the employee is required to reimburse the employer and/or Alight for the overpayments.

SSDI Benefits Denial

If the SSDI benefits claim is denied and the employee used Allsup to file, they can assist the employee in filing an appeal at no cost. If the SSDI benefits claim is denied and the employee is still eligible for disability benefits under VLDP, the VLDP benefits will continue so long as the claim is in appeal. However, if the employee does not file an appeal, the VLDP benefit could be reduced or stopped.

Adjustments to Benefits

VLDP benefits are adjusted for any outside income earned while on short-term or long-term disability. An employee who receives income other than the VLDP benefit must complete an Outside Earned Income Reporting Form. For short-term disability, the form is included in the VLDP introductory packet and the employee returns it to the employer. For long-term disability, the employee is again sent the form, which must be submitted to Alight. The employee must repay any overpayments of disability benefits received under VLDP.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

Taxes

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

The employee must report to the employer and/or Alight all payments received from the following sources:¹

- Any disability payments the employee or employee's family receives for the same condition from the SSA;
- Any disability benefits paid under any other governmental disability program for the same condition, including local government disability benefits and federal civil service benefits;
- Wages or salary reported on W-2 forms and income from self-employment;
- Benefits received from any other employer-sponsored group insurance contract for the purpose of providing income replacement for the same condition, not including any disability insurance purchased directly;
- Benefits paid under any compulsory benefits law, such as workers' compensation or unemployment compensation.

Disability benefit payments are not offset by military disability benefits.



Cost-of-living increases from any of the sources listed above are not included in the adjustment of the VLDP benefit.

Administration of the Program

Certain VLDP benefits may be limited:

- Six weeks of post-partum benefits are provided in the case of uncomplicated normal or C-section deliveries;
- Alight may base the decision to pay or not pay the disability benefit solely on objective medical evidence, notwithstanding a licensed treating healthcare professional's request;
- Short-term and long-term disability benefits are not payable if the employee ceases to be a member of the VRS due to withdrawal of member contributions, retirement or termination of employment;
- The employee's return to the pre-disability position or any other VRS-covered position is not guaranteed after the transition into long-term disability;
- If the employee's payments under the Workers' Compensation Act are adjusted or terminated for refusal to work or to comply with the requirements of § 65.2-603 of the Code of Virginia, the VLDP disability benefits will be calculated as if the employee were receiving the payments. The employee must meet the VLDP eligibility requirements.

Exclusions

The following exclusions apply:

• Short-term and long-term disability benefits are not payable if the disability results from the commission of a felony or during a period while the employee was

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

<u>Taxes</u>

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care

¹ Code of Virginia § 51.1-1159.



VRS Employer Manual

incarcerated. It is the employee's responsibility to notify Alight within five calendar days of an incarceration to avoid an overpayment that must be repaid;

Long-term disability benefits are not payable if the disability results from the abuse
of alcohol, the misuse of any prescribed medication or the misuse of any controlled
substance, unless the employee is actively receiving treatment. Alight must agree
the employee is fully complying with the treatment plan and making substantial
progress toward rehabilitation.

Confidentiality

Medical records and other information relating to the employee's disability claim are maintained and stored by Alight, in compliance with state and federal privacy laws and regulations. To maintain confidentiality, the employer receives only the following information:

- Date the disability is initiated;
- Whether the claim is for short-term, long-term disability or a catastrophic or major chronic condition;
- Authorized start and end dates of the disability;
- Information regarding workplace accommodations needed to facilitate a return to work;
- Estimated return-to-work date;
- Type of claim, such as work-related or non-work-related;
- Number of hours a day the employee is able to work;
- Dates to begin paying the employee at 100%, 80% and 60% income;
- Case closure dates.

Review and Appeal Process

Alight evaluates claims and monitors continued eligibility for disability benefits. The evaluation includes a thorough review of all available clinical, medical, vocational and employer information. Alight may also contact the employee's licensed treating healthcare professional to discuss the disability claim.

The employee is notified in writing of any Alight claim decision. If the claim is denied or terminated, the employee is given the reasons and the steps to appeal the decision. The employee must notify Alight of the decision to appeal within 180 calendar days from the date of the decision letter.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

<u>Taxes</u>

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Appeal Process

The appeal process is as follows:

- 1. The employee receives a decision letter from Alight explaining the benefits have been denied or terminated;
- The employee submits a written appeal letter to Alight within 180 days from the
 date of the denial, including any additional medical information related to the
 denial or other reason for disputing the disability claim decision. The employee
 should include any additional information supporting the disability, including
 payroll or occupational information;
- Within two business days, the employee is sent an acknowledgement letter from Alight with the name and phone number of the appeals specialist handling the appeal;
- 4. Once additional medical information has been submitted, Alight has an initial review period of 45 days. If there are circumstances beyond the control of Alight, the appeals specialist notifies the employee that it may take up to 45 additional days to reach a determination. The employee may be asked to provide additional information for review, though the time required to provide this information is not included in the 45-day limit;
- 5. The appeals specialist sends the employee an appeal decision letter. If the benefits are still denied or terminated after this appeal, the employee may file a second level appeal within 60 days from the date of the first appeal decision letter;
- 6. Within two business days, the employee is sent an acknowledgment letter conveying that Alight received the re-appeal. The claim goes through a second appeal process;
- 7. The appeals specialist sends the employee a re-appeal decision letter. If the benefits are still denied or terminated after this re-appeal, the employee may ask a Circuit Court judge to review Alight's re-appeal decision. The employee files a notice of appeal with VRS, along with a copy to Alight within 30 days after the date of the re-appeal decision letter denying or terminating benefits. The letter informs the employee that the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia govern all Circuit Court appeals, and that the employee may wish to consult an attorney.



At any time during the appeal process, the appeals specialist may reverse the denial or termination of benefits. The employee then receives a written letter stating the approval and any applicable past due benefits.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Section 1: Administration

Authority and Interpretation

Disability Trust Fund

Roles

Contact Information

- VRS
- Alight
- Workers' Compensation
- illumifin

VLDP Benefits at a Glance

Eligibility

• Dual Employment

<u>Taxes</u>

Levy, Garnishment and Attachment

Social Security Disability Insurance

- Filing a SSDI Claim
- SSDI Benefits Award
- SSDI Benefits Denial

Adjustments to Benefits

Administration of the Program

Exclusions

Confidentiality

Review and Appeal Process

Appeal Process

Skip to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Section 2 – Short-Term Disability

A short-term disability is an illness, injury or other condition, such as surgery, pregnancy, complications from pregnancy or a major chronic or catastrophic condition, which prevents the employee from performing the full duties of the job. VLDP provides coverage for non-work-related and work-related disabilities.

The maximum short-term disability period is 125 workdays. The 125-workday period is based on a Monday-through-Friday work week. An employee who is still disabled after 125 workdays may be placed on long-term disability.

An employee receiving short-term disability is considered an active employee. The employer continues to report to VRS the full pre-disability earnings for an employee on short-term disability.

Eligibility - Short-Term Disability

An employee is eligible for non-work-related short-term disability benefits after one year of continuous service with the same employer.

For Hybrid members, the number of months of continuous Hybrid plan membership determines the amount of income replacement an employee may receive. Continuous service with the same employer includes full-time salaried service and absences for military leave or periods of reduced hours or job restrictions while on disability.

An employee who moves from one school division or political subdivision employer to another must satisfy a new one-year waiting period for non-work-related disability, as well as the five-year waiting period for higher income replacement. This also applies if the employee leaves then returns to a former position after a bona fide break in service. A bona fide break in service is a break of at least one full calendar month from the last day of employment over a period the employee normally would work.

Elimination Period – Short-Term Disability

VLDP short-term disability benefits typically provide income protection after seven consecutive calendar days of absence if an employee cannot work due to illness or

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Δlight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

injury. The seven-day elimination period begins on the date the employee is determined to be medically disabled.



An employee, whose work week is Monday through Friday, falls ill on Monday, May 4 and does not report to work that day. They are out the rest of the week. If the employee does not return to work the following Monday, May 11 and is determined to be medically disabled as of May 4, they begin to receive income replacement effective Monday, May 11.

If an employee works 20 hours or less during the seven-day elimination period, the elimination period is still satisfied.



An employee, whose work week is Monday through Friday, falls ill on Monday, May 4 and does not report to work that day. The employee works eight hours on Tuesday and eight hours on Wednesday for a total of 16 hours. They are then absent Thursday and Friday. If they do not return to work the following Monday, May 11 and are determined to be medically disabled as of May 4, they begin to receive income replacement, effective Monday, May 11. The employee did not work more than 20 hours during the elimination period.

If an employee works more than 20 hours during the elimination period, a new sevenday elimination period must be met before short-term disability benefits begin.

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period – Short-Term Disability

The seven-day elimination period for short-term benefits may be waived if the employee's condition is determined by Alight to be a major chronic condition. See the Short-Term Disability Conditions section of this chapter for an explanation of these conditions.

Workers' Compensation - Short-Term Disability

An employee may be eligible for workers' compensation benefits if the disability is the result of a work-related injury or illness. Work-related short-term disability benefits are coordinated through VLDP and the workers' compensation provider.

Workers' compensation is the primary benefit. VLDP benefits are secondary and are offset by payments received under workers' compensation.

If the workers' compensation claim is denied, the employer may be responsible for recouping all payments to the employee for short-term disability while the workers' compensation decision was pending, unless the claim is approved by Alight.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Δlight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

A VLDP-participating employee receiving workers' compensation benefits cannot retire until all workers' compensation benefits have been paid and offset.

See the Short-Term Disability Adjustments for Workers' Compensation section of this chapter to determine how the VLDP payment is offset.

Initiating a Claim – Short-Term Disability

An employee must notify the human resource office and file a claim with Alight within 14 days of the first day of the disability. For illnesses or injuries that are known in advance, such as a scheduled surgery or childbirth, the employee should notify their human resource office and Alight as soon as possible to avoid a delay in processing. An employee cannot receive benefits more than 14 days before the date the disability is reported to Alight.

An employee who incurs a work-related short-term disability during the first year of employment must file a claim for benefits under the Workers' Compensation Act. Once the work-related disability has been approved by workers' compensation, the employee must file a claim with Alight.

To initiate the claim process, the employee must call Alight. The employer may provide the employee with the <u>VLDP Handbook</u>, available through the VRS website.

Retroactive Claim Procedure - Short-Term Disability

VLDP will adjust benefits retroactively for up to 14 calendar days from the time a short-term disability claim is initiated. It is the employee's responsibility to file the claim in a timely manner.



An employee becomes disabled on August 3 but uses 20 days of annual leave to cover one month's absence. The employee doesn't report their disability until August 31. Since the date of disability is August 3, their elimination period would be August 3-9 if they had reported the benefit on time, and benefits would have begun August 10. Because the employee waited to report the disability, benefits will begin on August 17.

Introduction Packet – Short-Term Disability

When a short-term disability claim is initiated, Alight sends the employee the following forms:

Attending Physician Statement (physician completes and submits to Alight);

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Δlight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

- Authorization for Release of Medical Information (employee completes and submits to Alight);
- Short-Term Disability Repayment Form (employee completes and submits to their employer);
- Short-Term Disability Outside Earned Income Reporting Form (employee completes and submits to their employer).

Income Replacement – Short-Term Disability

Income replacement is different for non-work-related disabilities and work-related disabilities. If the employer's leave policy allows it, an employee may use leave to supplement the short-term disability benefit during both non-work-related and work-related disabilities.

Private Insurance – Short-Term Disability

To bridge the one-year gap in VLDP coverage for non-work-related disabilities, an employee may purchase short-term disability insurance from an outside vendor. This coverage can be paid through payroll deduction.

Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related) – Short-Term Disability

After the one-year waiting period for non-work-related short-term disabilities has been met, income replacement normally begins on the eighth calendar day of absence, after authorization by Alight. However, the seven-day elimination period may be waived for catastrophic and major chronic conditions. Use the following chart to determine income replacement levels:

Months of Continuous Service	Workdays of Income Replacement at 100%	Workdays of Income Replacement at 80%	Workdays of Income Replacement at 60%
Less than 12	0	0	0
13 – 59	0	0	125
60 – 119	25	25	75
120 – 179	25	50	50
180 or more	25	75	25

An employee who completes five years of continuous service in the program with the same employer (including the one-year waiting period) is eligible for income replacement at higher levels.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- • Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability
Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

An employee who moves to another employer that provides VLDP or to a state position covered under VSDP must satisfy another one-year waiting period and a five-year waiting period for higher income replacement levels.

Income Replacement (Work-Related) – Short-Term Disability

Income replacement normally begins on the eighth calendar day of absence, after authorization by Alight. However, the seven-day elimination period may be waived for major chronic conditions. For an employee with a work-related short-term disability, use the following chart to determine the income replacement levels:

Months of Continuous Service	Workdays of Income Replacement at 100%	Workdays of Income Replacement at 80%	Workdays of Income Replacement at 60%
Less than 60	0	0	125
60 – 119	85	25	15
120 or more	85	40	0

An employee on a work-related short-term disability claim who only receives a workers' compensation benefit does not accrue VRS service after the member contribution ends. The employee is eligible to purchase this period.

Calculating Income Replacement – Short-Term Disability

If the employee's workers' compensation claim is approved, it becomes the primary benefit. The employee then receives 66%% of the average weekly wage at the time of the short-term disability, within limits established by the Workers' Compensation Act. VLDP supplements this benefit up to the applicable income replacement level. The VLDP benefit is offset (reduced) by the workers' compensation benefit.

Taxes on Benefits – Short-Term Disability

The benefits paid under non-work-related short-term disability are fully taxable.

Benefits for work-related short-term disability are not taxable; however, pay for the following is taxable:

- Annual leave;
- Other eligible leave used to supplement income replacement at 100%.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- • Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Contributions - Short-Term Disability

The employee retains VRS membership while on short-term disability. The employee continues to accrue service credit and remains eligible for retirement after reaching age and service requirements. Time spent on short-term disability counts toward the five years needed to become vested for a retirement benefit.

While the employee is on short-term disability and the employer is paying the employee, the employer continues to report the employee's creditable compensation and to deduct the member contribution. In order to fulfill this requirement, the employee must be in an active employment status in myVRS Navigator throughout the approved period of short-term disability. The reported creditable compensation should be the full amount of the employee's pre-disability earnings.

During periods of non-work-related short-term disability, the employee continues to contribute 4% to the defined benefit component and 1% to the defined contribution component of the Hybrid plan. The employee can make changes to the voluntary contributions each quarter. The employer must contribute 1% to the defined contribution component of the Hybrid plan and make required defined benefit contributions.

For an employee on work-related disability, contributions depend on how the employer reports. If the employee receives only the workers' compensation benefit, the employer does not deduct the VRS member contribution so the employee does not accrue service credit during short-term disability. However, the employee is eligible to purchase this period as service credit. Contact VRS to determine the process.

Short-Term Disability Conditions

If the employee's short-term disability condition meets the requirements for a major chronic condition outlined below, the seven-day elimination period is waived.

Major Chronic Conditions – Short-Term Disability

A short-term disability is determined to be for a major chronic condition if it is a lifethreatening health condition that exists over a prolonged period of time and is not expected to resolve in the foreseeable future. The employee must:

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

JULY 2024

Skip to <u>Section 3: Long-Term Disability</u>
Skip to <u>Section 4: Long-Term Care</u>



VRS Employer Manual

- Be determined to be disabled by a licensed treating healthcare professional;
- Have an approved short-term disability claim with the same condition within the last six months;
- Be under the ongoing care of a licensed treating healthcare professional.

The determination of a life-threatening health condition is made at the discretion of the VLDP plan administrator. All cases are reviewed and updated with additional medical information on an individual basis.

Catastrophic Conditions – Short-Term Disability

If it is determined that the short-term disability is for a catastrophic condition, the 60% income replacement level may be increased to 80% for the duration of the disability. Alight consults with the employee's licensed treating healthcare professional to determine if the employee's condition is catastrophic and when the 80% disability payments begin.

A short-term disability is determined to be catastrophic if an employee requires substantial supervision to be protected from threats to health and safety as a result of severe cognitive impairment, or if unable to perform at least two of the six activities of daily living. These activities are:

- Bathing;
- Dressing;
- Eating (ability to feed oneself);
- Controlling the bladder or bowel;
- Toileting (ability to get on and off the toilet and a reasonable level of personal hygiene);
- Transferring (getting in or out of bed or chairs).

If the employee's condition improves so the employee no longer meets the criteria for catastrophic disability, but is still on long-term disability, the income replacement returns to 60% of the pre-disability income.

Partial Disability – Short-Term Disability

Partial disability exists during the first 24 months following the onset of a short-term injury or illness when an employee is earning less than 80% of pre-disability income and, as a result of the illness or injury, the employee is:

- Able to perform one or more, but not all of the essential functions of the employee's own job in an active employment status or on a part-time basis;
- Able to perform all the essential job functions of the employee's own job on a parttime basis only.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

JULY 2024

Skip to <u>Section 3: Long-Term Disability</u> Skip to <u>Section 4: Long-Term Care</u>



VRS Employer Manual

Total Disability – Short-Term Disability

A total disability exists during the first 24 months following the onset of a short-term injury or illness when an employee is unable to perform all of the essential functions of the employee's own job, or after the initial 24 months following the onset of an injury or illness when an employee is unable to perform any job for which they are reasonably qualified and is earning less than 80% of pre-disability earnings.

Successive Periods – Short-Term Disability

If the licensed treating healthcare professional releases the employee to return to work full-time, full-duty and the employee becomes disabled again due to the same or similar condition within 45 consecutive calendar days, the employee will be on the same short-term disability claim. Income replacement resumes at the level the employee was receiving during the previous disability period.



If during the 45-day period an employee misses at least a full day of work and seeks medical treatment on that day for the reason they were on claim, then the employee must satisfy a new 45-day period.

If the Condition Becomes a New Disability – Short-Term Disability

A new period of short-term disability begins when the employee:

- Returns to work full-time/full-duty for 45 or more consecutive calendar days;
- Experiences a new disability or illness during the 45-calendar-day period, unrelated to the first condition.

The employee must satisfy a new seven-day elimination period unless the condition is found to be a major chronic condition.

Adjustments to Benefits – Short-Term Disability

An employee is responsible for reporting any additional income to the employer. If an employee receives or is eligible to receive income and/or benefits from certain sources, the VLDP short-term benefits are offset. When combined with the income from these other sources, the employee cannot receive more than 100% of pre-disability income.

Short-term disability benefit payments are reduced by the amount of income from the following sources:

 Disability payments from the SSA or other similar government program benefits that the employee or family are entitled to as a result of the qualifying disability;

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Δlight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

- Benefits paid under any other governmental disability program, including local government disability benefits or federal civil service benefits that are paid for the same disabling condition;
- Benefits received from any other employer-sponsored group insurance contract for the purpose of providing income replacement for the same disabling condition (this does not include any disability insurance purchased directly by the employee);
- Benefits paid under any compulsory benefits law, such as workers' compensation, severance or unemployment compensation.



Cost-of-living increases received in payments from sources listed above are not considered in the offset of the VLDP benefit.

Adjustments for Earned Income – Short-Term Disability

Short-term disability payments are adjusted for wages and salary reported on W-2 forms and income from self-employment. To calculate the adjusted short-term disability income benefit, reduce the pre-disability income amount by the outside income and apply the appropriate percentage of income replacement. To determine the total monthly income, add the outside income to the adjusted short-term disability benefit.



An employee's pre-disability income is \$3,000 per month from the employer with an additional \$1,000 from outside income. During short-term disability, the outside income offsets the pre-disability income and the employee receives the appropriate percentage of the remaining balance:

- 100% income replacement (\$3,000 \$1,000) x 100% = \$2,000;
- 80% income replacement (\$3,000 \$1,000) x 80% = \$1,600;
- 60% income replacement $(\$3,000 \$1,000) \times 60\% = \$1,200$.

Overpayments – Short-Term Disability

An employee who is overpaid in short-term benefits is required to repay the employer. The employer may also choose to collect interest on the overpayment amount. The employee may also be responsible for repayment of payments due to:

- Falsification of statements;
- Falsification of any record knowingly made by or on behalf of the employee;
- The employee's failure to make any report of change in disability status.

Workers' Compensation Adjustments – Short-Term Disability

If the short-term disability is work-related and the employee is receiving a workers' compensation benefit, the workers' compensation benefit is paid first. If the workers' compensation benefit is greater than the short-term disability benefit, no VLDP benefit is payable.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Lump-sum settlements under workers' compensation are prorated over the period during which the employee receives the VLDP short-term disability benefit. Payments made under the Workers' Compensation Act for permanent partial disabilities and medical, legal or rehabilitation expenses are not included in determining the prorated amount.



An employee receives \$600 a week under workers' compensation. The employee accepts a lump sum settlement amount of \$12,000, which includes a payment of \$6,000 to cover both medical and legal expenses. Subtracting the medical and legal expenses from the \$12,000 yields a net lump sum payment of \$6,000. This net lump sum of \$6,000 is divided by the \$600 per week payment the employee would have received if they had not accepted the settlement ($$6,000 \div $600 = 10$ weeks$).

The VLDP supplemental benefit would apply as though the weekly workers' compensation benefit was being paid for a period of 10 weeks. After the 10 weeks, the full VLDP benefit would be paid at the appropriate income replacement level.

9-, 10- and 11-Month Employees – Short-Term Disability

An employee is only eligible for short-term disability benefits during contract months, even if paid during the off months. An employee who becomes disabled during the contract period receives benefits but benefits end when the contract ends. If the employee's contract is renewed, the benefits start again.

An employee who works on a 9, 10 or 11-month contracts and who is paid over 24 pay periods is paid a base rate and retained earnings. If the employee becomes disabled, the income replacement percentage is applied to both the base rate and the retained earnings.

Disability in Non-Contractual Periods – Short-Term Disability

An employee may become injured or ill during a non-contractual period. Because the employee has fulfilled the contract and employment responsibilities for the year (e.g., a faculty member in the summer), the employee is not required to report the injury or illness at the time of its occurrence.

An employee who reports the short-term disability claim to Alight during the noncontract period (e.g., a faculty member in the summer) won't receive short-term benefits during that time. However, if the disability prevents the employee from

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Δlight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

returning to work at the beginning of a new contract year, the employee may be eligible for benefits under VLDP.

An employee who does not report the claim to VLDP until the beginning of the new contract period is eligible to begin receiving short-term disability at the appropriate income replacement level (based on hire date), if approved under VLDP. The employee must satisfy the seven-day elimination period following the date of the disability.

Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods – Short-Term Disability

A contract employee who elects to receive paychecks year-round versus only during the contract time frame does not receive short-term disability pay, even if the disability occurred prior to the end of the contract. Short-term disability payments stop at the end of the contract and will resume at the beginning of the new contract period if the employee remains disabled.



An employee's contract ends May 15 and a new contract period will begin on August 15. The employee becomes disabled on April 15 and is approved for a short-term disability claim through June 10. The employee would only receive benefits through the contract end date of May 15. If the employee is not able to return to work due to the disability on August 15 (the beginning of the new contract), the short-term disability benefits will resume as long as the employee is still medically supported.

Non-Renewal of Contract – Short-Term Disability

If an employee is receiving short-term disability benefits and the contract is not renewed, the short-term disability benefits end when the contract ends.



An employee's contract ends May 15 with no contract renewal. They become injured March 1. Short-term disability benefits end May 15 and the employee is terminated as of that date.

Miscellaneous Issues – Short-Term Disability

Adjustments for Severance – Short-Term Disability

VLDP short-term disability benefits are offset by severance payments. An employee who is still disabled at the end of severance continues to receive VLDP benefits, as long as the illness or disability continues to be clinically and administratively approved. Workers' compensation benefits are not offset by severance benefits; however, the VLDP portion received by the employee is offset by severance.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Holiday Pay – Short-Term Disability

An employee on short-term disability receives 100%, 80% or 60% (depending on the employee's benefit income level as of the holiday) for the hours the employee does not work on the holiday, provided the disability absence is authorized.



During the seven-day elimination period, count any holidays toward the required seven calendar days. Once the employee begins to receive short-term disability benefits, the employer will pay the employee for the holiday based on the level of short-term disability benefit (100%, 80% or 60%).

End of Benefits – Short-Term Disability

Short-term disability benefits end when the employee does one of the following:

- Returns to work on a full-time, full-duty basis;
- Takes a refund of the VRS contributions and interest from the defined benefit component of the Hybrid plan;²
- Is no longer medically eligible;
- Resigns from employment;
- Is terminated from employment for cause;
- Receives long-term disability benefits;
- Does not cooperate or comply with the requirements of VLDP;
- Begins to receive a VRS service retirement benefit;
- Dies.



An employee is not allowed to take service retirement while receiving workers' compensation benefits.

If the employee does not comply with VLDP requirements (such as return-to-work arrangements or vocational rehabilitation) during short-term disability periods, benefits may stop and the employee may be terminated from the program and/or from employment.

If the employee dies during short-term disability, their survivor may be eligible for death-in-service benefits. The survivor should contact the employer's human resource office for more information about death-in-service survivor benefits.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care

² See the <u>Refunds chapter</u> of the Employer Manual.



VRS Employer Manual

Returning to Work – Short-Term Disability

Each employer must establish specific policies and procedures and must create opportunities for employees to return to work after short-term disabilities. The goal is an employee's safe return to gainful employment, though the return to the same position is not guaranteed.

This section applies to an employee who has met the one-year waiting period requirement and who has gone out on short-term disability.

Return-to-Work Programs – Short-Term Disability

If an employer offers a return-to-work program for employees returning after short-term disability absences, Alight, the employer's human resource office and the employee's licensed treating healthcare professional work together to develop a transitional plan or a medical or vocational rehabilitation plan for the employee. The transitional plan helps the employee to gradually return to full duty. If the employee cannot return to full-time, full-duty work, the human resource office provides a job description to Alight.

The job description is reviewed and an evaluation is prepared to determine physical activities the employee can safely perform. The evaluation covers how long the employee can sit, stand and walk and how many pounds the employee can safely lift or carry. The human resource office determines whether the employer is able to accept the temporary job modifications. Each employer should have specific policies and procedures that include the maximum length of time temporary accommodations may be offered to an employee.

An employee may continue to receive VLDP short-term disability benefits while working under a return-to-work program. The VLDP benefit is adjusted by any income earned while in the program.

An employee may also return to work immediately if the employee presents a note from a licensed treating healthcare professional ("treatment provider") to the employer releasing the employee to return to work full-time and full-duty prior to the authorized end date. The employer must fax the note to and then call Alight to verify the note is from the licensed treating healthcare professional who certified the disability.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

If the treatment provider's note indicates restrictions, the employer must review the request and determine if they can accommodate these restrictions. If Alight confirms the treatment provider's note is from the licensed treating healthcare professional who certified the disability, the employee may return to work immediately.

Additional Resources from Alight – Short-Term Disability

VLDP provides medical and vocational case management during periods of short-term disability. The employee may be required to participate in such a plan while receiving short-term disability benefits. The plan may be a medical plan prescribed by a licensed treating healthcare professional or a vocational rehabilitation plan or a return-to-work plan coordinated on the employee's behalf by Alight, the employer or a rehabilitation services provider. The plan must be consistent with the licensed healthcare treating professional's recommendations regarding the employee's ability to return to work.

The first priority is to return the employee to the same job. If that is not possible, Alight works with the employee, the employer's human resource office and the licensed treating healthcare professionals to attempt to return the employee to another position. Placement options may include working in a new position.

The vocational rehabilitation counselor takes the following into account in working with the employee on a formal vocational rehabilitation plan:

- Physical/mental capabilities;
- Educational background;
- Work history;
- Transferable skills;
- Pre-disability wages and salary;
- Interests;
- Aptitudes.

The purpose of return-to-work and vocational rehabilitation plans is to return the employee to work safely. If the employee does not comply with the plan, short-term disability benefits may stop and the employee may be terminated from the program and/or from employment.

If work is arranged through a vocational, rehabilitation or return-to-work plan, or if an employee returns to work with job modifications or reduced hours, the days worked are not counted in determining the duration of the return-to-work period. For more

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Δlight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

information, see the Successive Periods of Short-Term Disability Due to the Same Condition section of this chapter.

Responsibilities - Short-Term Disability

Each of the following key parties works to make the short-term disability process as easy as possible and to return the employee to work as soon as medically able.

Employee – Short-Term Disability

Throughout the period of short-term disability, an employee must comply with any medical or vocational rehabilitation requirements that Alight has established, report to the human resource office any outside income received and communicate with the supervisor. The employee:

- Initiates the short-term disability claim by contacting Alight and the human resource representative;
- Returns the Attending Provider Statement and Medical Authorization form to Alight;
- Complies with any return-to-work initiatives prepared by the employer;
- Stays in regular contact with the supervisor;
- Complies with any vocational and physical rehabilitation requirements;
- Contacts the employer and Alight;
- Works with the licensed treating healthcare professional to ensure the timely delivery of medical information to Alight;
- Reports all outside earned income while on disability by returning the Repayment Agreement and Outside Earned Income Reporting Form to the employer.

Employer – Short-Term Disability

The employer is responsible for helping the employee throughout the entire shortterm disability period. The employer:

- Advises the employee of the impact of FMLA on the period of disability;
- Pays the employee during short-term disability;
- Communicates with the employee throughout the period of disability;
- Discusses with employee which leave type to use to cover the seven-day elimination period and periods of short-term disability when income goes below 100%, if offered by the employer;
- Works with Alight to develop return-to-work plans for short-term disability participants;
- Assists the employee in returning to work when it is medically advisable to do so.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional – Short-Term Disability

The employee's licensed treating healthcare professional plays an important role in helping the employee return to work after a short-term disability. The licensed treating healthcare professional:

- Receives the employee's signed medical release form;
- Provides the employee's medical information to Alight;
- Participates in planning for the employee's rehabilitation throughout the period of disability;
- Coordinates the employee's return-to-work efforts with Alight and the employer.

Alight - Short-Term Disability

Alight, the third-party administrator for VLDP, serves as the coordinator of the short-term disability process. Alight:

- Opens the claim and advises the employee of the next steps;
- Mails an information packet to the employee upon notification of a new claim;
- Receives the employee's medical information from the employee's licensed treating healthcare professional;
- Reviews the claim and approves or denies it;
- Advises both the employer and the employee of the claim status;
- Advises the employer of any of the employee's additional reported income that will offset benefit payments;
- Coordinates the return-to-work program with the employer and licensed treating healthcare professional;
- Manages any issues of non-compliance.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Eligibility

Elimination Period

Major Chronic Condition Elimination Period

Workers' Compensation

Initiating a Claim

- Retroactive Claim Procedure
- Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

- Private Insurance
- Income Replacement (Non-Work-Related)
- Income Replacement (Work-Related)
- Calculating Income Replacement
- Taxes on Benefits

Contributions

Short-Term Disability Conditions

- Major Chronic Conditions
- Catastrophic Conditions
- Partial Disability
- Total Disability
- Successive Periods of Disability
- If the Condition Becomes a New Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

- Disability in Non-Contractual Periods
- Employees Paid in Non-Contractual Periods
- Non-Renewal of Contract

Miscellaneous Issues

- Adjustments for Severance
- Holiday Pay

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

- Return-to-Work Programs
- Additional Resources from Alight

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Section 3 – Long-Term Disability

Long-term disability benefits provide income replacement for an employee who becomes disabled and who is unable to work for an extended period of time. Long-term disability is a non-work-related or work-related condition that prevents the employee from performing the full duties of the job for an extended period of time.

A work-related disability is the result of an occupational illness or injury that occurs on the job and the cause is determined to be work-related under the Virginia Workers' Compensation Act. Long-term disability benefits begin at the expiration of the maximum period of short-term disability of 125 workdays.

While on long-term disability, the employee continues to accrue service as a VRS-covered member. Long-term disability is in effect when the employee:

- Is not working at all;
- Is working and earning less than 80% of their pre-disability income.

Introduction Packet – Long-Term Disability

Alight sends a long-term disability introduction packet to the employee when it appears likely the disability will continue. The packet includes a letter encouraging the employee to use Allsup, the free Social Security assistance provider. The packet also includes forms that Alight uses to transition the employee into long-term disability status and that should be returned to Alight. The documents include:

- Long-Term Disability Repayment Agreement;
- Authorization for Release of Medical Information;
- VLDP Outside Earned Income Reporting;
- W-4;
- Request for Health Insurance Credit;
- Other documents that may be requested by Alight.

Income Replacement -Long-Term Disability

During long-term disability, Alight provides income replacement of 60% of the predisability income, including any salary increases received while on short-term disability.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

• Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual



An employee's pre-disability income was \$5,500 per month. The long-term disability benefit would be \$5,500 times 60%, or \$3,300 per month.

Income replacement is 80% for a catastrophic condition. See the Short-Term Disability Conditions section of this chapter for more information.

If the employee's workers' compensation claim is approved, it becomes the primary benefit. The employee receives 66%% of the average weekly salary at the time of the disability, within limits established by the Workers' Compensation Act. The VLDP benefit is offset by the workers' compensation benefit.

Contributions - Long-Term Disability

An employee receives service credit during the period of long-term disability, based on the pre-disability income.

During periods of long-term disability, the employee and employer no longer make contributions. However, if the employee is totally and permanently disabled and qualifies for SSDI, the employer must continue to make the mandatory 1% employer contribution to the Hybrid 401(a) Plan.

Employment Status - Long-Term Disability

Creditable service is earned during periods of long-term disability and counts toward the five years required for vesting and toward VRS service retirement. Service cannot be purchased during periods of long-term disability.

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

An employee who is going into long-term disability is required to apply for SSDI benefits if Alight advises it.

Alight provides Social Security filing assistance through Allsup at no cost to the employee. If the employee does not use this service, the VLDP long-term disability benefit is reduced by the estimated Social Security benefit amount during the Social Security application process.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight



VRS Employer Manual

Workers' Compensation – Long-Term Disability

Work-related long-term disability benefits are coordinated through VLDP and the employer's workers' compensation administrator.

Workers' compensation is the primary long-term disability benefit. VLDP benefits are secondary and are offset by payments received under workers' compensation. VLDP supplemental payments will not exceed 60% of the employee's pre-disability income (80% in the case of a catastrophic disability), adjusted for any wages and salary from employment.

An employee cannot take service retirement until all workers' compensation benefits have been paid and offset. See the Short-Term Disability Adjustments for Workers' Compensation section of this chapter to determine how the VLDP payment is offset.

Taxes on Benefits -Long-Term Disability

The benefits paid under non-work-related long-term disability are fully taxable.

Benefits for work-related long-term disability are not taxable.

Long-Term Disability Conditions

If the long-term disability is determined to be catastrophic, the 60% income replacement level may be increased to 80% for the duration of the disability. Alight consults with the employee's licensed treating healthcare professional to determine if the employee's condition is catastrophic and when the 80% disability payments begin.

A disability is determined to be catastrophic if an employee requires substantial supervision to be protected from threats to health and safety as a result of severe cognitive impairment or if unable to perform at least two of the six activities of daily living. These activities are:

- Bathing;
- Dressing;
- Eating (ability to feed oneself);
- Controlling the bladder or bowel;
- Toileting (ability to get on and off the toilet and a reasonable level of personal hygiene);
- Transferring (getting in or out of bed or chairs).

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

If the employee's condition improves so the employee no longer meets the criteria for catastrophic disability but is still on long-term disability, the income replacement returns to 60% of the pre-disability income.

Successive Periods Disability – Long-Term Disability

If the licensed treating healthcare professional releases the employee to return to full-time, full-duty work and the employee becomes disabled again from the same or similar condition within 180 consecutive calendar days, the disability is considered to be a continuation of the prior long-term disability. The employee then goes on long-term disability with no elimination period.

If the employee is released to full-time, full-duty work by the licensed treating healthcare professional but becomes disabled again from the same or similar condition after 180 consecutive calendar days, the subsequent period will be considered a new claim. The employee must initiate a new claim with Alight and must satisfy the sevenday elimination period.

Adjustments to Benefits -Long-Term Disability

Long-term disability benefits are adjusted by any benefits payable as a result of the same disability. The employee cannot receive more than 100% of pre-disability income. Long-term disability benefit payments are reduced by the amount of income from the following sources:

- Wages and salary received from employment. Wages and salary include income reported on W-2 forms and income from self-employment;
- Disability payments from the SSA or other similar government program benefits that the employee or family is entitled to as a result of the qualifying disability;
- Benefits paid under any other governmental disability program, including local government disability benefits, or federal civil service benefits that are paid for the same disabling condition;
- Benefits payable from any other employer-sponsored group insurance contract for the purpose of providing income replacement for the same disabling condition (not including any disability insurance purchased directly by the employee);
- Benefits paid under any compulsory benefits law, such as workers' compensation or unemployment compensation.



Cost-of-living increases received in payments from sources listed above are not considered in the offset of the VLDP long-term disability benefit.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

• Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Long-term disability benefit payments are offset by any amount from any of the above payment sources, whether or not the employee receives the payments. This includes cases where the employee is denied benefits and fails to appeal the denial. However, any benefits that are denied on an appeal that was requested by Alight will not reduce the employee's disability payment.

Long-term benefits under some of the programs listed above that have been applied for, but not yet approved, do not reduce the employee's disability benefit until the approval has been obtained and the benefits from the other program begin. If the benefits from other programs are made retroactively, appropriate adjustments are made to collect the overpayment.

Adjustments for Earned Income – Long-Term Disability

Long-term disability benefits are adjusted by any salary and wages from employment during the first 12 months the employee receives disability benefits, based on the income level the employee receives under VLDP.

The employee's pre-disability income is \$5,500 per month. The employee is working 50% of their normal hours, earning \$2,750 per month.



- \$5,500 (pre-disability income) x 60% = \$3,300 (long-term disability benefit);
- \$2,750 (earned wages and salary from employment) x 60% = \$1,650;
- \$3,300 \$1,650 = \$1,650 (adjusted long-term disability benefits);

The earned income of \$2,750 added to the adjusted long-term disability benefit of \$1,650 gives the employee \$4,400 of income from the combined sources.

After the first 12 months, long-term benefits are adjusted by 70% of wages and salary from employment.

The employee's pre-disability income is \$5,500 per month. The employee is working 50% of their normal hours, earning \$2,750 per month.



- \$5,500 (pre-disability income) x 60% = \$3,300 (long-term disability benefit);
- \$2,750 (earned wages and salary from employment) x 70% = \$1,925;
- \$3,300 \$1,925 = \$1,375 (adjusted long-term disability benefits);

The earned income of \$2,750 added to the adjusted long-term disability benefit of \$1,375 gives the employee \$4,125 of income from the combined sources.

Overpayments – Long-Term Disability

The employee is responsible for reporting any additional income to Alight using the Outside Income Reporting Form (for long-term disability) included in the VLDP

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight



VRS Employer Manual

introductory packet. An employee who is overpaid in long-term benefits is required to repay Alight. Alight may also choose to collect interest on the overpayment amount. The employee may also be responsible for repayment of long-term benefit payments due to:

- Falsification of statements;
- Falsification of any record knowingly made by or on behalf of the employee;
- The employee's failure to make any report of change in disability status.

This recovery may be made in one of the following ways:

- As an offset of future VLDP payments due to the employee;
- By payment from an employee's refund;
- By payment from an employee's life insurance benefit;
- By offset to the employee's retirement benefit;
- By action of law against the employee.

Alight sends the employee a letter including a calculation of the overpayment. Unless the overpayment is returned to Alight, the employee's long-term benefits are applied to the overpayment until it has been paid. Alight may recover the overpayment through increments taken from future benefit payments or the employee may pay the amount in full.

Workers' Compensation Adjustments – Long-Term Disability

If the long-term disability is work-related and the employee is receiving a workers' compensation benefit, the workers' compensation benefit is paid first. Lump-sum settlements under workers' compensation are prorated over the period during which the employee receives the VLDP long-term disability benefit. Payments made under the Workers' Compensation Act for permanent partial disabilities and medical, legal or rehabilitation expenses are not included in determining the prorated amount.



An employee receives \$600 a week under workers' compensation and accepts a lump sum settlement amount of \$12,000, which includes a payment of \$6,000 to cover both medical and legal expenses. Subtracting the medical and legal expenses from the \$12,000 yields a net lump sum payment of \$6,000. This net lump sum of \$6,000 is divided by the \$600 per week payment the employee would have received if they had not accepted the settlement $($6,000 \div $600 = 10$ weeks). The VLDP supplemental long-term benefit applies as though the weekly workers' compensation benefit was being paid for a period of 10 weeks. After the 10 weeks, the full VLDP benefit is paid at the appropriate income replacement level.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to <u>Section 1: Administration</u>
Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u>

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

• Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight



VRS Employer Manual

9-, 10- and 11-Month Employees -Long-Term Disability

An employee who transitions into long-term disability before the end of the contract period remains on long-term disability benefits the same as any other employee as long as the disability continues to be certified for benefits. Alight continues to work with the employee upon the return to work, if feasible, but the return will not be to the employee's pre-disability position if the contract was not renewed.

End of Benefits -Long-Term Disability

Long-term disability benefits end when the employee:

- Is able to perform the full duties of the pre-disability job without any restrictions during the first 24 months of disability;
- Is able to perform the regular duties of any job for which the employee is reasonably qualified after 24 months of disability or earns 80% or more of the predisability income;
- Takes a refund of the VRS contributions and interest from the defined benefit component of the Hybrid plan;³
- Is no longer medically eligible;
- Resigns from employment;
- Is terminated from employment for cause;
- Does not cooperate or comply with the requirements of VLDP;
- Begins to receive a VRS service retirement benefit;
- Dies.



An employee cannot take service retirement while receiving workers' compensation benefits.

If the employee does not comply with VLDP requirements (such as return-to-work arrangements or vocational rehabilitation) during long-term disability periods, benefits may stop and the employee may be terminated from the program and/or from employment.

If the employee dies during long-term disability, the survivor may be eligible for death-in-service benefits. The survivor should contact the employer's human resource office for more information about death-in-service survivor benefits.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

• Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

³ See the <u>Refunds chapter</u> of the Employer Manual.



VRS Employer Manual

Returning to Work – Long-Term Disability

The employee continues to receive the VLDP long-term disability benefit while working under a return-to-work program and making less than 80% of pre-disability income. However, the VLDP benefit is adjusted by any income earned while in the program.

Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation – Long-Term Disability

Alight may require an employee to participate in a rehabilitation plan while receiving long-term disability benefits. The goal is to assist the employee with rehabilitation and a safe return to gainful employment. When an employee goes on long-term disability, it may not be possible to return to the same job because the previous position may no longer be available.

The plan may be either:

- A medical plan prescribed by the licensed treating healthcare professional;
- A vocational rehabilitation plan or return-to-work plan coordinated by Alight or a rehabilitation services provider.

The plan must be consistent with the licensed treating healthcare professional's recommendations regarding the employee's ability to return to work.

The following is taken into consideration when the vocational case manager assists the employee with writing and implementing the employee's own formal vocational rehabilitation plan:

- Physical/mental capabilities;
- Educational background;
- Work history;
- Transferable skills;
- Pre-disability wages and salary;
- Interests;
- Aptitudes.

If the employee does not comply with vocational rehabilitation services, long-term disability benefits may stop and the employee may be terminated from the program.

Responsibilities – Long-Term Disability

The following key parties work to make the long-term disability process as easy as possible and to return the employee to work as soon as medically able.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

• Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Employee – Long-Term Disability

Throughout the period of long-term disability, an employee must comply with any medical or vocational rehabilitation requirements that Alight has established, report to Alight any outside income received and communicate with the supervisor. The employee:

- Signs and returns information sent by Alight;
- Completes the Health Insurance Form to continue coverage, if applicable;
- Complies with return-to-work initiatives;
- Complies with assigned vocational rehab and/or other rehab services.

Employer – Long-Term Disability

The employer is responsible for helping the employee during the transition from short-term disability to long-term disability. The employer:

- Pays the employee for any annual, compensatory or overtime leave (dependent upon employer's leave program);
- Communicates benefit information to the employee;
- Communicates whether the job is being held;
- Provides the Health Insurance Form to the employee, if applicable;
- Stops paying short-term disability benefits;
- Stops reporting the employee to VRS.

Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional – Long-Term Disability

The employee's licensed treating healthcare professional plays an important role in helping the employee return to work after a long-term disability. The licensed treating healthcare professional:

- Receives a copy of the medical release form;
- Provides medical information to Alight;
- · Participates in planning for the employee's rehabilitation;
- Works with Alight, the employer and the employee with the return to work.

Alight - Long-Term Disability

Alight, the third-party administrator for VLDP, serves as the coordinator of the long-term disability process. Alight:

- Mails long-term disability packet to the employee;
- Obtains medical information:
- Approves or denies the claim;
- Pays the employee directly for long-term disability benefits and the health insurance credit, if applicable;
- Reports the employee to VRS.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term

Disability

Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Introduction Packet

Income Replacement

Contributions

Employment Status

Social Security Long-Term Disability (SSDI)

Workers' Compensation

Taxes on Benefits

Long-Term Disability Conditions

• Successive Periods of Disability

Adjustments to Benefits

- Adjustments for Earned Income
- Overpayments
- Workers' Compensation Adjustments

9-, 10- And 11-Month Employees

End of Benefits

Returning to Work

• Medical and Vocational Rehabilitation

Responsibilities

- Employee
- Employer
- Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional
- Alight

Skip to Section 4: Long-Term Care



VRS Employer Manual

Section 4 – Long-Term Care

VRS administers the VLDP Long-Term Care Plan and the Commonwealth of Virginia (COV) Voluntary Group Long-Term Care Insurance Program.

VLDP Long-Term Care Plan

The VLDP Long-Term Care Plan provides benefits for an employee who needs help with everyday life tasks because of a prolonged health problem or following a major illness or injury. The VLDP Long-Term Care Plan helps pay for eligible services not covered by other health plans or Medicare.

Eligibility - Long-Term Care Plan

All active employees who are covered under VLDP are covered under the VLDP Long-Term Care Plan at no cost to themselves. The VLDP Long-Term Care Plan assists with the cost of:

- Care in a nursing home or hospice facility;
- Assisted living facility care;
- Community-based care;
- Home healthcare services;
- Informal caregiving;
- Alternative or transitional care.

Long-term care benefits are payable 90 calendar days following the beginning of each incident when a licensed treating healthcare professional certifies the employee:

- Is unable to perform at least two of the six activities of daily living without substantial assistance; or
- Has a severe cognitive impairment requiring substantial supervision.

Activities of daily living are:

- Bathing;
- Dressing;
- Eating (ability to feed oneself);
- Controlling the bladder or bowel;
- Toileting (ability to get on and off the toilet and a reasonable level of personal hygiene);
- Transferring (getting in or out of bed or chairs).

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u>
Disability

Return to <u>Section 3: Long-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Section 4: Long-Term Care

VLDP Long-Term Care Plan

- Eligibility
- Highlights
- Benefits
- Applying for Benefits
- Continuing Coverage

COV Voluntary Group Long-Term Care Insurance



VRS Employer Manual

Highlights – Long-Term Care Plan

The following chart highlights the major features of the long-term care plan:

	Long-Term Care Highlights
Daily Benefit Maximum Amount	\$96 per day. This is the maximum amount of coverage the plan pays for covered services in any single day.
Lifetime Maximum Amount	\$70,080. The lifetime maximum amount is based on the maximum daily benefit amount of \$96 multiplied by 730 days (two years): \$96 x 730 days = \$70,080. Coverage ceases when the total benefit payouts reach \$70,080, regardless of how long benefits are paid.
Premiums	There is no charge as an active VLDP participant. See the Continuing Long-Term Care Coverage section of this chapter.
How Benefits Are Paid	The benefit is equal to the lesser of:Actual qualified expenses incurred per day;Allowable daily benefit amount.
Long-Term Care Waiting Period	Benefits are payable 90 calendar days after the beginning of each incident certified by a licensed treating healthcare professional as eligible for VLDP long-term care benefits.

Benefits – Long-Term Care Plan

Long-term care plan coverage pays the lesser of the actual qualified expenses incurred per day or the allowable daily benefit amount. The following chart summarizes the coverage levels for each type of care:

Long-Term Care Benefits	
Nursing Care Facility	Up to 100% of the maximum daily benefit amount of \$96. The benefit provides skilled and custodial care in a nursing facility that meets all applicable licensing requirements.
Assisted Living Facility	Up to 100% of the maximum daily benefit amount of \$96. The benefit provides personal services and care in an assisted living facility that meets all applicable licensing requirements.
Hospice Care Facility	Up to 50% (\$48) of the maximum daily benefit amount. If the employee is terminally ill, the benefit provides care in a hospice facility that meets all applicable licensing requirements.
Home Health Care	Up to 50% (\$48) of the maximum daily benefit amount. Home health care includes custodial care, nursing care, therapy and homemaker services provided in-home by nurses, social workers, home health aides or other licensed or certified professionals.
Adult Day Care Center	Up to 50% (\$48) of the maximum daily benefit amount. This covers care in a community-based, group setting for adults.
Hospice Care Agency	Up to 50% (\$48) of the maximum daily benefit amount. If the employee is terminally ill, provides in-home care by a hospice care agency that meets all applicable licensing requirements.
	Up to 50% (\$48) of the maximum daily benefit amount.
Alternate Plan Benefit	The benefit may cover an Alternate Plan of Care developed by the licensed treating healthcare professional, provided the employee, the employee's physician and illumifin agree to the plan.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u>
Disability

Return to <u>Section 3: Long-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Section 4: Long-Term Care

VLDP Long-Term Care Plan

- Eligibility
- Highlights
- Benefits
- Applying for Benefits
- Continuing Coverage

COV Voluntary Group Long-Term Care Insurance



VRS Employer Manual

Transitional Care	A one-time cash payment equal to three times (\$288) the maximum daily benefit amount can be used to support the transition from independent living to long-term care. Employees may use this one-time payment in any way they wish. Note: This benefit does not reduce the lifetime maximum benefit.
Informal Care Benefit	Up to 25% (\$24) of the maximum daily benefit amount for up to 50 days per calendar year can be used for personal care from a family member, neighbor or private caregiver. Coverage pays the lesser of actual qualified expenses incurred per day or the allowable daily benefit amount. Note: This benefit does not reduce the lifetime maximum benefit.
Informal Caregiver Training	One payment each time the employee is receiving benefits can be used to provide for training a personal caregiver by a licensed treating healthcare professional. Coverage pays the lesser of the actual amount of the cost of training or three times (\$288) the maximum daily benefit amount.
	Note: This benefit does not reduce the lifetime maximum benefit.
Bed Reservation	If the employee is in a covered facility, such as a nursing home, and has to be hospitalized, the plan covers up to 100% of the maximum daily benefit amount (\$96) for up to 21 days per calendar year.
Respite Care	Up to 50% (\$48) of the maximum daily benefit amount for up to 21 days per calendar year can be used to provide for a substitute in-home caregiver while the usual caregiver takes leave. Note: The benefit does not reduce the lifetime maximum benefit.
Care Advisory Services	This benefit is used to identify local long-term care services and programs available that can best meet the employee's care needs. Services provided by care advisors are voluntary.
World-Wide Coverage	The employee is reimbursed for charges incurred for services equivalent to those covered under this plan outside the United States, its territories or Canada. The amount of the reimbursement equals the benefit amounts allowable under the plan for up to 365 days of services. All bills remitted must be for US dollars.

Applying for Benefits – Long-Term Care Plan

The employee or the employee's representative must contact illumifin within 60 days of the employee being certified by a licensed treating healthcare professional of qualification for benefits.

illumifin PO Box 64011; St. Paul, MN 55164-0011 Phone: 800-761-4057

A customer service representative will explain the information needed to process the claim and within 10 days of receiving the completed application, illumifin will send the employee a written notice of benefits.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to <u>Section 1: Administration</u>

Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Return to <u>Section 3: Long-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Section 4: Long-Term Care

VLDP Long-Term Care Plan

- Eligibility
- Highlights
- Benefits
- Applying for Benefits
- Continuing Coverage

COV Voluntary Group Long-Term Care Insurance



VRS Employer Manual

Continuing Coverage – Long-Term Care Plan

Employees who terminate or retire from a VLDP-covered position may elect to continue participating in the VLDP Long-Term Care Program at their own expense when they are no longer working. The employee pays the premium, which is based on group rates. The plan benefits and eligibility requirements are the same as those for active employees. The employee is billed directly for the premiums.

The employee must submit the Authorization of Coverage Retention for the Long Term Care Plan (VRS-170) and the Protection Against Unintentional Lapse of Long Term Care (VRS-171) to illumifin within 60 calendar days of the last day of VLDP-covered employment. For more information and the cost of premiums, contact illumifin at 800-761-4057.

COV Voluntary Group Long-Term Care Insurance

The Commonwealth of Virginia (COV) Voluntary Group Long Term Care Insurance Program is available to all employees and can provide supplemental coverage in conjunction with the VLDP Long-Term Care Plan. Eligible family members between the ages of 18 and 75 may also apply for coverage. The program provides a monthly benefit allowance to help cover the cost of long-term care services, such as nursing home care or at-home care to assist with bathing, eating or other activities of daily living. VRS has contracted with Genworth Life Insurance Company as the insurer for the program.

Plan details differ depending on whether an employee purchased coverage prior to or after January 1, 2017. For more information, see the <u>COV Group Voluntary Long-Term</u>

<u>Care Insurance chapter</u> of the Employer Manual or visit the <u>COV Voluntary Group Long</u>

<u>Term Care Insurance Program page</u> on the VRS website.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Return to <u>Section 3: Long-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Section 4: Long-Term Care

VLDP Long-Term Care Plan

- Eligibility
- Highlights
- Benefits
- Applying for Benefits
- Continuing Coverage

COV Voluntary Group Long-Term Care Insurance



VRS Employer Manual





TABLE OF CONTENTS



Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to Section 2: Short-Term Disability

Return to Section 3: Long-Term Disability

Return to Section 4: Long-Term Care

Appendix: Glossary

Appendix – Glossary of VLDP Terms

Activities of Daily Living

Bathing, transferring (such as getting in and out of bed), dressing, toileting (using the bathroom), continence and eating (ability to feed oneself).

Catastrophic Condition

A disability is determined to be catastrophic if an employee requires substantial supervision to protect the employee from threats to health and safety as a result of severe cognitive impairment or is unable to perform at least two of the six activities of daily living.

Eligible Employee

To be eligible for VLDP, an employee must be in the Hybrid plan and the employer must have elected coverage under VLDP.

Elimination Period – Short-Term Disability

Seven consecutive calendar days of medical absence from work that must be met before short-term disability benefits can begin. The elimination period commences the first day of a disability. An employee who returns to work for 20 hours or less during the seven-calendar-day elimination period will have satisfied the elimination period. If the absence is due to a major chronic condition or catastrophic illness diagnosed at the onset of the disability, no elimination period is required before benefits begin.

Holiday

Official workday designated by the governing body of the employer. For a full-time employee, a holiday is eight hours and a half-day holiday is four hours.

Licensed Treating Healthcare Professional

A doctor of medicine or osteopathy who is licensed to practice medicine or surgery by the state in which the doctor practices. Also included: podiatrist, optometrist, chiropractor, scientologist, clinical psychologist, or clinical social worker licensed to practice in the state and performing within the scope of practice as defined under state law.

If the licensed treating healthcare professional is not a doctor of medicine or osteopathy, the employee may be required by Alight to seek treatment from a doctor or osteopath after a reasonable period of time.

Long-Term Care

Reimbursement for medical, personal and social services provided in a nursing care facility, assisted living, home health or respite care. To qualify the employee must be unable to perform two out of the six activities of daily living or have a severe cognitive impairment. There is a once-in-a-lifetime long-term care waiting period (90 days) and a maximum lifetime benefit.

Long-Term Disability Benefit

An income replacement benefit that commences upon the expiration of 125 workdays of short-term disability benefits if the employee continues to be medically eligible.



VRS Employer Manual

Major Chronic Condition

A life-threatening health condition that exists over a prolonged period of time and is not expected to resolve in the foreseeable future. The determination of a life-threatening health condition is made at the discretion of Alight in accordance with, but not limited to, the following criteria. The employee:

- Must be deemed disabled by a licensed treating healthcare professional;
- Have had an approved disability claim for the same condition within the last six months;
- Must be under the ongoing care of a licensed treating healthcare professional.

All cases are reviewed and updated with additional medical documentation on an individual basis. There is no elimination period for illnesses/injuries designated as major chronic.

Partial Disability

A partial disability exists during the first 24 months following the occurrence or commencement of an illness or injury:

- When an employee is earning less than 80% of pre-disability earnings;
- As a result of injury or illness, is able to perform one or more, but not all, of the essential job functions of the employee's own job on a full-time basis; or
- Is able to perform all of the essential job functions of the employee's own job only on a part-time basis.

Return-to-Work Program

Assignment of an employee to the pre-disability position or alternative assignments for a specified length of time with job modifications in an attempt to assist the employee in returning to full-duty employment.

Severance

An employee may receive severance payments when involuntarily separated from a position. VLDP benefits are offset by severance payments.

Short-Term Disability Benefits

An illness, injury or other condition, such as surgery, pregnancy, complications from pregnancy or a major chronic or catastrophic condition, which prevents an employee from performing the full duties of the job. VLDP provides coverage for non-work-related and work-related disabilities.

Total Disability

A total disability exists during the first 24 months following the occurrence or commencement of an illness or injury if an employee is unable to perform all of the essential functions of normal job duties on a full-time basis. It exists after 24 months following the occurrence or commencement of an illness or injury if an employee is unable to perform any job for which the employee is reasonably qualified based on training or experience and is earning less than 80% of pre-disability earnings.

Virginia Retirement System (VRS)

The state agency authorized to administer pensions, benefits and retirement policies.⁴

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u>
<u>Disability</u>

Return to <u>Section 3: Long-Term</u> Disability

Return to Section 4: Long-Term Care

Appendix: Glossary

⁴ Code of Virginia § 51.1-124.1, et seq.



VRS Employer Manual

Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP)

VLDP provides income protection for an employee who cannot work because of a non-work-related or work-related illness, injury or other condition, such as surgery, pregnancy, complications from pregnancy or a major chronic or catastrophic condition. VLDP benefits include short-term and long-term disability coverage and long-term care coverage. VLDP provides transitional, medical rehabilitation and vocational rehabilitation plans to help the employee return to work when able and free advocacy service to assist the employee in applying for SSDI benefits.

Waiting Period – Long-Term Care

Benefits are payable 90 calendar days after the beginning of each incident certified by a licensed treating healthcare professional as eligible for VLDP long-term care benefits.

Work-Related Injury or Illness

An injury or illness which occurs on the job to an eligible employee for which benefits are payable under the Workers' Compensation Act.

Workday

When a full-time employee is on disability leave, it is assumed that the work schedule is a standard eight-hour day. This includes those pay periods in which the employee starts short-term disability or returns to work following short-term disability.

Workers' Compensation Benefit

Income replacement as awarded by the Workers' Compensation Commission when an employee suffers a compensable work-related injury or illness. Income replacement is awarded by workers' compensation and is based upon 66\%% of the average weekly wage earned prior to the accident within a minimum and maximum amount.

TABLE OF CONTENTS







Return to Section 1: Administration

Return to <u>Section 2: Short-Term</u> <u>Disability</u>

Return to <u>Section 3: Long-Term</u> Disability

Return to <u>Section 4: Long-Term Care</u>

Appendix: Glossary

JULY 2024